Further Education, Traineeship and Apprenticeships Admissions Procedure



Date	ap	pro	ved	:

Approved by: AMT/CCMT

Responsible Manager: Admissions and Contact Centre Manager

Executive Lead: Vice Principal – Engagement

Applicable to colleagues:

Applicable to students:

Accessible to students:

Accessible to general public:

Yes

Yes

(including clients)

Consultation

Consultation undertaken with: Date:

AMT
 CCMT
 Students
 Yes 08/03/2022
 Yes 06/04/2022
 25/02/2022

Policy review frequency: 2 years

Contents

- **1.** Scope and purpose of the procedure
- **2.** Accountability and Responsibility
- 3. Admissions Principles
- **4.** Procedure
 - **4.1** Entry Requirements
 - 4.2 Assessing Applications
 - 4.3 Special Cases
 - 4.4 Interviews
 - 4.5 Decisions and Offers
 - 4.6 Non- academic considerations
 - **4.6.1** Criminal Convictions
 - **4.6.2** Disclosure and Barring Service
 - **4.7** Offer holder next steps
 - 4.8 Confirmation
- **5.** Applicants wishing to reapply
- 6. Widening Access
 - **6.1** Applicants with a Disability
 - **6.2** Applicants who have been in Local Authority Care (Looked After Children/In Care)
- **7.** Reporting
- **8.** Appeals and Complaints
- **9.** Equality Impact Assessment

1. Scope and purpose of the procedure

This procedure applies to all applications made by prospective Student/Apprentices to any of our full or part time further education courses, traineeships and Level 2 and 3 apprenticeships regardless of their background or characteristic.

This procedure identifies B&FC's approach to delivering a fair, accessible, transparent, consistent and professional admissions service to all applicants who have the potential to benefit from further education or an apprenticeship.

This procedure considers sector best practice, statutory and legislative obligations. There may be occasions where this procedure will be superseded by the relevant policies and procedures relating to these obligations and requirements.

2. Accountability and Responsibilities

2.1 Admissions and Contact Centre Manager is responsible for ensuring that B&FC has appropriate admissions procedures in place in line with best practice, statutory and legal requirements and that these are effectively implemented and monitored. They are also responsible for ensuring this procedure is accessible to staff colleagues and students and that appropriate training is in place for colleagues staff-involved in making admissions decisions. All colleagues involved in any aspect of the admissions process are responsible for following this procedure.

2.2 Admissions Team

B&FC's Admissions Team are responsible for receiving and processing applications to our further education courses, traineeships and Level 2 and 3 apprenticeships. Applications come from a variety of channels including the B&FC website, via the B&FC School Liaison Team and B&FC recruitment events.

It is the responsibility of the Admissions Team to enter accurate data onto B&FC's Application System, Dynamics. Admissions Officers assess all applications against approved, published entry criteria as part of the decision-making process and liaise with designated academic colleagues if a decision cannot be made based on formal qualifications (referred to as non-standard applications).

The main responsibilities of the Admissions Team include:

- To assess applications using agreed admissions criteria, and to make decisions on all standard applications within agreed timescales outlined below
- To liaise with designated academic colleagues on non-standard entry requirements including relevant work/life experience
- To liaise with the apprenticeship team on any apprenticeship applications and update Dynamics when any decisions or changes in status occur
- To respond to applicants within agreed timeframes including:
 - Acknowledging all online applications on receipt
 - All other applications (e.g. paper/verbal or written request from current Student/Apprentices) within five working days (excluding bank holidays and College closures)

- To correspond directly with applicants on admissions matters, and, where appropriate, in consultation with designated academic colleagues
- To provide timely and relevant information at various stages of the process, to ensure applicants remain involved, updated and motivated prior to the start of the academic year
- To correspond with applicants in a timely manner when any changes to their programme of application occurs (such as those made during revalidation) in line with Admissions best practice and Consumer Market Authority legislation
- To keep accurate and thorough records to ensure a clear audit log is maintained
- To proactively liaise with curriculum involved in the admissions process to ensure admissions policies and procedures are strictly adhered to
- To be involved in the organising of any auditions, interviews, and open days as appropriate
- To be proactively involved in keeping up to date with developments in education and to participate in training and development appropriate to their role
- To monitor application data ensuring that published entry requirements are both accurate and consistent

2.3 Apprenticeships on-boarding

The Head of Registry is responsible for ensuring the College has appropriate procedures in place in line with best practice, statutory and legal requirements for the sign up process for traineeships and apprenticeships.

The Apprenticeship Team are responsible for the organisation and delivery of: Apprenticeship recruitment for the curriculum areas Leadership, Management and Lifestyle, Society, Health and Childhood.

The Curriculum are responsible for the organisation and delivery of Apprenticeship recruitment for the curriculum areas of Maritime, Offshore, Construction, Engineering and Science, and BOSA

The Apprenticeship Team and Curriculum are responsible for attending interview and IAG sessions for Traineeships and Apprentices and ensuring that outcomes of interviews and IAG sessions are recorded in Dynamics during the sessions.

3. Admissions Principles

This procedure is underpinned by several principles including:

- B&FC is committed to always operating a transparent, accessible, professional, consistent and clear admissions experience for all applicants regardless of gender, ethnic or national origin, age, disability, religion, sexual orientation or any other protected characteristic
- All applicants will be treated with respect and fairness during all stages of the admissions process.
- Applicants will be kept informed throughout the application process and all decisions will be clearly articulated in a transparent and timely manner by email and/or in letter form. In some cases we may contact the applicant

by telephone for further information.

- B&FC will always aim to reduce or remove any unnecessary barriers in the application process and the Admissions Team will work with relevant colleagues to provide appropriate support.
- Assessment methods will be fair, reliable and appropriate to support B&FC in selecting students with the potential to enrol on and complete their courses successfully.
- Clear, timely information will be provided to applicants to support them in making informed choices that support their career goals.
- All colleagues involved in the admissions process will be appropriately trained to perform their role.
- B&FC will always aim provide the right support so that applicants can ultimately benefit from, and succeed in, their programme or apprenticeship.
- Relevant regulations and legislation will always be complied with.

4. Procedure

4.1 Entry Requirements

Criteria for admissions are set by the Admissions Team in liaison with curriculum and the Apprenticeships Team. They are reviewed and approved annually and bi-annually benchmarked against other providers to ensure they remain clear, reasonable and consistent. Entry requirements are approved by AMT.

4.2 Assessing Applications

Applications are assessed and places offered based on the academic and professional judgement of appropriately trained colleagues. Admissions selectors typically use the following criteria to assess an application received via the application itself or through interview:

- Academic qualifications (including prior and predicted grades)
- Relevant work/life experience and/or knowledge (where appropriate)
- Keen interest in their chosen subject
- Programme-specific criteria (e.g. audition, satisfactory DBS, employer secured and/or placement)

Programme specific criteria

In addition to the basic criteria described above there will be specific entry criteria for some programmes. These are listed on the College's website and published material including prospectuses. Our Admissions assessment framework supports a fair, accessible and transparent process and includes the following three stages with the fourth culminating in enrolment/sign up:

Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3	Stage 4
Achieved predicted qualifications and/or evidenced relevant work/life experience/knowledge	Submitted additional requirements such as a successful interview or audition or securing of an employer.	Confirmation (achieving entry requirements in final exam results and all other academic or non-academic entry requirements such as satisfactory DBS)	Enrolment/ Sign Up

4.3 Special Cases

Transfer to B&FC for part of a further education course or apprenticeships

B&FC will consider applications from students wishing to transfer to B&FC for part of a further education course e.g. completing one year at another provider and wishing to complete the second year at B&FC. Applicants should initially contact admissions to discuss their individual circumstances. Requests will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.

16 year old apprenticeship applicants

All 16 year old apprenticeship applicants have a full time programme added to their record. They are then invited into interview to speak to both the Apprenticeship Team and curriculum team (full time equivalent) to fully understand their options. An applicant may request that the full time option is removed from their record following interview. Admissions will update Dynamics accordingly.

Applicants requiring additional support

B&FC are committed to providing an accessible admissions process for all. Where an applicant has declared a disability or need for additional support, Admissions liaise with the relevant colleagues to provide information to applicants and support at events held throughout the admissions process such as open events, interviews and auditions. (Please see section 6)

4.4 Interviews

Interviews are an integral part of the B&FC admissions process to ensure that applicants are placed onto a course that is appropriate, meets their careers goals and enables them to succeed.

At B&FC all further education applicants are offered an assessment interview by either the Admissions Team or curriculum team whereby applicants can have an informed discussion to assess their suitability for the course, demonstrate their ability in a subject (e.g. music, art or performance), discuss any non- standard or experiential learning or experience and determine any additional support that might be provided to improve Student/Apprentice success.

4.4.1 16-18 further education interviews

All 16-18 applicants are invited to attend an informal interview within three weeks of applying. The interview is their opportunity to speak to a tutor about their career goals, chosen course or apprenticeship, understand the entry requirements needed and learn about their next steps. If they have applied for both a full time programme and an apprenticeship they are directed to speak to both options during their interview.

In some instances, 16-18 interviews may involve a presentation about B&FC, group or one-to-one discussions with a course tutor or member of the apprenticeship team, a brief assessment/activity or an audition/performance.

Following interview, outcomes including whether an offer is to be made are documented and sent to Admissions for updating in Dynamics-EBS.

4.4.2 19+ further education interviews

We consider applications from people holding a wide range of qualifications and experience. Therefore, all applicants aged 19 and over are invited to attend an event where they can speak to a course tutor about their chosen course, qualifications and/or relevant work/life experience, understand entry requirements, learn about funding and support available and find out about next steps.

Following interview, outcomes including whether an offer is to be made are documented and sent to Admissions for updating in Dynamics.

4.4.3 Apprenticeship events

All apprenticeship applicants are invited to an event or series of events where they can:

- find out more about life as an apprentice
- understand the steps in becoming an apprentice such as securing an employer
- interview with an apprenticeship skills coach
- take an online maths, English and ICT assessment
- create or improve their CV

The Apprenticeships Team are responsible for making any updates, decisions or changes to applications following these events in Dynamics.

4.5 Decisions and offers

4.5.1 16-18 further education

Following interview, applicants will normally be sent an offer letter within 7 working days. In cases where a follow up interview is required or they are referred to Gateway, applicants are informed at the event and is followed up with a letter, email or phone call within 5 working days to confirm their next steps.

4.5.2 19+ further education

Applicants will normally receive a conditional offer within 10 working days and is dependent

on the applicant being able to fulfil the requirements of the application, provide documentary evidence which meet the academic entry requirements, any prerequisite assessments and a successful interview.

4.5.3 Offers

An offer will be one of the following:

- Conditional where an applicant has been initially assessed as suitable for the
 course but still needs to meet some academic and non-academic requirements
 such as not yet achieving a specified result with their current qualification, taking a
 BKSB assessment or providing further information about their work/life experience
 related to the course.
- 2. **Unconditional** where an applicant has met all entry criteria an unconditional offer will be made.

All applicants receiving an offer will receive a letter outlining in detail the conditions of the offer. This will include the details of any specific criteria that needs to be fulfilled before an applicant can enrol onto their programme. It will include a link to the College's Terms and Conditions and the Compliments, Complaints and Feedback Policy.

4.5.4 Reject decisions

Reject decisions are only made in very limited cases for B&FC further education courses. Every effort is made to find an alternate, suitable course or apprenticeship where the original course/apprenticeship is not appropriate.

Reject decisions will be made – but are not limited to – the following reasons:

- Knowingly providing false or fraudulent information at any point of the application process
- Failure to fulfil academic or non-academic entry requirements (for example, a satisfactory DBS disclosure or medical clearance before starting a course or providing evidence of securing relevant employment or placement)
- Have no outstanding tuition fees owing to B&FC from a previous enrolment.

All rejections are reviewed by the Admissions and Contact Centre Manager in liaison with the Head of Curriculum. All applicants who receive a reject decision will be provided with feedback as to why their application was unsuccessful.

4.6 Non- academic considerations

4.6.1 Criminal Convictions

Applicants declaring a criminal conviction will be assessed according to the Appropriateness of Study Policy.

4.6.2 Disclosure and Barring Service

Some courses mandate a satisfactory DBS before starting the programme. In such cases,

this will be made clear in any published entry requirements and in any resulting offers.

4.7 Offer holder next steps

Applicants wishing to confirm their place with us can do so in a number of ways and at any point after receiving an offer:

 Returning any FREEPOST reply cards to Admissions enclosed in their offer letter or other mailings to

Admissions
Blackpool and the Fylde College
FREEPOST
SCE155559Bispham Campus
Blackpool FY2 0UR

- Sending an email or text to the Admissions Team at admissions@blackpool.ac.uk
- Phoning the Admissions Team at 01253 504322
- Replying to an email or text sent from the Admissions Team
- Updating their status on their B&FC Admissions Portal Account

4.8 Confirmation

Before an applicant can enrol they must produce evidence that they have fully met the academic and non-academic conditions outlined in their initial offer. This could include, for example, copies of exam certificates or a satisfactory DBS check.

5. Applicants wishing to reapply

Applicants who have previously been unsuccessful are welcome to re-apply if their individual circumstances have changed and will be considered on merit. In certain circumstances, the B&FC Appropriateness of Study Policy and Procedure will take precedence.

6. Widening access

Widening access and supporting social mobility are integral to our ethos and mission and we welcome applications from everyone who could benefit from and be successful in, further education or an apprenticeship.

Whilst applicants can disclose information at any point in the admissions process, we encourage them to provide this information at the point of application to ensure we can contact them to discuss what adjustments can be made, what support they will require once they arrive and information about support such as bursaries that might be of interest.

6.1 Applicants with a Disability

We welcome applications from disabled Student/Apprentices and those with specific learning disabilities and their applications will be considered on the same academic grounds as those of other Student/Apprentices. We will contact applicants who indicate a disability on their application and subsequently accept an offer of a place to study with us. We will invite them to discuss their support needs with a member of the Student Support and Wellbeing team so that any necessary support can be arranged.

B&FC complies with the Special Educational Needs Disability (SEND) code of practice as follows:-

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) code of practice

B&FC will give all applicants of all ages opportunities before, at entry and at subsequent points, to declare whether they have a learning support need, a disability or a medical condition, which may affect their learning. If a student makes a declaration, B&FC will discuss with the student the type and level of support relevant to the programme of study and relevant transition into College. Any screenings and assessments will be differentiated and proportionate to the likely level of educational support need.

'Young people up to 25 years have the right to request that an institution is named in their EHC plan. Local authorities have a duty to name that institution in the EHC plan unless, following consultation with the institution, the local authority determines that it is unsuitable for the young person's age, ability, aptitude or SEN, or that to place the young person there would be incompatible with the efficient use of resources or the efficient education of others.'

B&FC endeavours to operate a 'tell us once' approach to SEN/D and disability and therefore it is necessary to share information with relevant staff on a need-to-know basis. All staff are fully aware of and adhere to the Colleges GDPR policy on information sharing.

On disclosure of a disability or learning difference B&FC aims to provide:

- A review of the interview procedure and applied adjustments to meet the needs of the individual. This may include a quiet environment or discussions with a member of the Student Support & Wellbeing team.
- Late applicants will be informed that in the case of significant but reasonable adjustment there may an agreed alternative start date in order to ensure the safety of all service users on site.

Right to refuse admission within the SEND code

A refusal will only be exercised where the College has considered the necessary adjustments and meeting the individual's needs, and these are considered beyond reasonable and do not meet need. This decision may be as a result of, but not limited to.

- The College is unable to guarantee the safety of the individual or others
- The high levels of support required for success are not sufficiently supported and funded by the applicants Local Authority
- The College needs reasonable time to plan and implement physical adjustments beyond the anticipatory duty.
- The College is unable to meet the statutory provision on the EHCP
- The provision does not meet the need of the individual

Every effort will be made to find a course appropriate for all applicants. However, despite all reasonable adjustments being made, in some circumstances, enrolment may not be possible.

Further information may be found here: https://www.fyidirectory.co.uk/blackpool-local-offer

6.2 Applicants who have been in Local Authority Care (Looked After Children/In Care)

We welcome applications from Student/Apprentices who have had experience of being in local authority care. Applicants who indicate they have been in care on their application will be contacted by the Student Support and Wellbeing Team to discuss any support or needs they may have. Further information may be found at: https://blackpool.ac.uk/looked-after-children-and-care-leavers

7. Reporting

Information we process about applicants will be used to manage their application and provide information about funding and/or finance they may be entitled to, and may be shared with organisations that have either statutory or regulatory responsibilities for the educational sector and for analytical purposes.

This includes but is not limited to organisations such as ESFA and Student Finance England.

8. Appeals and Complaints

An appeal is defined as a challenge to admissions decision. This may be a decision to reject your application or on the conditions of your offer. Applicants wishing to appeal an admissions decision should follow the Admissions Appeals Procedure.

An appeal is not:

- general feedback
- an expression of dissatisfaction with a service you have received from B&FC

Therefore, the Compliments, Complaints and Feedback procedure should be followed in the above instances. Further information may be found on our website at https://blackpool.ac.uk/college-policies

Academic appeals for further education/Apprenticeship and Traineeship students are covered under a separate procedure which may be found on our website:

Further Education (FE) and Work Based Learning (WBL) Appeals against Assessment Decisions Policy and Procedures https://blackpool.ac.uk/college-policies

1. Equality Impact Assessment

Safeguarding, Health and Safety and Sustainability						
Initial Form to be completed with Risk Assessments or as part of a proposal or change to a policy, plan or new way of working						
Title of Activity: Advanced Learner Loan Financial Support Policy	☐ New or ☑ Revision Please tick as appropriate					
	Expected Implementation Date: April 2022					
Author and Date: Director for Students, August 2021	What is the review date? April 2023					
Equality and Diversity. Which of the characteristics maybe impacted upon? And, if yes, how has this been considered? What are the risks? What are the benefits?						
Safeguarding: Are there any aspects of this proposal which could cause a learner/member of staff/visitor to feel unsafe? If yes, how has this been considered? What are the risks? What are the benefits?	☐ Yes	⊠ No				
Health and Safety: Have any risks been identified? If yes, how has this been considered? What are the risks? What are the benefits?	☐ Yes	⊠ No				
Sustainability: Are there expected benefits or impacts on sustainability issues? If yes, how have these been considered?	☐ Yes	⊠ No				
Evidence: What evidence do you have for your conclusions and expectations for these conclusions? How will this impact be monitored for all these considerations?	☐ High	☐ Medium				
Is this policy of a high/medium or low risk?	Low					